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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Noble
Engineering Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Noble
Engineering Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, | am
pleased to present our annual report for the year ended 31 March
2018.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 29 September
2017 (the “Listing Date”). With the capital raised from the Listing,
the Group has greater flexibility to enhance the productivity with
newly acquired machinery and equipment which strengthen our
positioning in the wet trades industry.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately HK$408.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 43.3% as compared to approximately
HK$285.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017. For the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded profit attributed
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$13.2 million as
compared to profit recorded for the year ended 31 March 2017 of
approximately HK$12.6 million. The increase of the profit was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue and the provision reversed
for impairment of trade receivables, while partially offset by the non-
recurring listing expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Setting aside the listing expenses, the Group’s net profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would be approximately HK$26.8 million
(2017: HK$17.7 million).

PROSPECT

In view of the strong demand in the primary residential property
market, real estate developers are more actively launching new
projects with aggressive financing schemes.

There has been an increasing number of project quotation
invitations received by the Group from potential and current
customers, and the net proceeds from the Listing are expected to
allow expansion of the Group’s operational capacity. The Group
will continue to improve our operation efficiency and profitability of
our business. The Group plans to expand our fleet of machinery
and equipment, which will enhance the basis of our technical
capability to bid future projects. The Group will also proactively seek
opportunities to expand our customer base and our market share
and undertake more wet trades projects which will enhance value to
our shareholders and stakeholders.

Based on the Group’s business acumen in wet trade works and
satisfactory commercial achievements, the Directors are cautiously
optimistic about the Group’s business outlook.

The Board believes that the Listing has enhanced the Group’s
image in relevant business sectors. With our active business
strategy in the coming year, the Group expects to create greater
value to our shareholders and investors.

Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN Wk DM

DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROSPECTS

The Group performs wet trades works as a subcontractor in Hong
Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a net profit
of approximately HK$13.2 million as compared to a net profit of
approximately HK$12.6 million for the same period in 2017. The
Directors are of the view that the increase of net profit was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue and the provision reversed
for impairment of trade receivables, while partially offset by the
non-recurring listing expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Setting aside the listing expenses, the Group’s net profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would be approximately HK$26.8 million
(2017: HK$17.7 million). In view of the fact that there has been
an increasing number of project quotation invitations received by
the Group from potential and current customers, and that the net
proceeds from the Listing are expected to allow expansion of the
Group’s operational capacity, the Directors are cautiously optimistic
about the Group’s business outlook.

OUTLOOK

The Shares were listed on GEM on 29 September 2017 by way of
share offer (the “Share Offer”). The Group always strives to improve
our operation efficiency and profitability. The Group plans to expand
our fleet of machinery and equipment, which will enhance the basis
of our technical capability to bid future projects. The Group will also
proactively seek opportunities to expand our customer base and
our market share and undertake more wet trades projects which will
enhance value to our shareholders.

The net proceeds from the Share Offer will provide financial
resources to the Group to meet and achieve our business objectives
and strategies which will further strengthen the Group’s market
position in wet trades works services.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors believe that there are certain risks and uncertainties
involved in the operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s
control. The Directors believe the more significant risks relating to
the business are as follows:

o Our revenue is mainly derived from projects which are non-
recurrent in nature and any failure of our Group to secure
tender contracts would affect our operations and financial
results;

o Error or inaccuracy in estimation of project duration or costs
when determining the tender price may result in substantial
loss incurred by us;

o If progress payment or retention money is not paid to us in
full as a result of disputes over our work done, our liquidity
position may be adversely affected; and

o Our performance depends on trends and developments in
the wet trades industry.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis ==

A detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 19
September 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance (‘ESG”) strategy and reporting. The Board
is responsible for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal
control systems to ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting
requirements are met.

The details of ESG performance of the Group are set out in the ESG
Report on pages 26 to 34 of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and
has implemented certain policies to ensure that its employees are
provided with competitive remuneration, good welfare benefits
and continuous professional training. The Group also maintains
good relationships with its customers and suppliers, without whom
success in the Group’s production and operation would be at risk.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$408.9 million, which increased by
approximately 43.3% as compared to the same period in 2017.
The increase in revenue was mainly due to increased amounts of
contracts awarded during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$12.6 million or
42.3%, from approximately HK$29.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 to approximately HK$42.4 milion for the year ended 31
March 2018. The increase in the Group’s gross profit was primarily
due to the increase in our revenue. The Group’s gross profit margin
remained stable at 10.4% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2018.

Other income and gain

Other income and gain increased by approximately HK$5.3 million
from approximately HK$71,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017
to approximately HK$5.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in bank interest income
and provision reversed for impairment of trade receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN Wk DM

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
approximately HK$15.2 million or 110.9% from approximately
HK$13.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$28.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase
was mainly due to non-recurring listing expenses of approximately
HK$13.6 million (2017: HK$5.1 million) incurred for the year ended
ended 31 March 2018.

Listing expenses

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recognised non-
recurring listing expenses under accrual basis of approximately
HK$13.6 million (2017: HK$5.1 million), as expenses in connection
with the Listing on GEM.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by 21.5% to approximately HK$215,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018 from approximately HK$177,000
for the same period in 2017, which was mainly due to increase in
bank overdrafts interest for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded profit
attributed to owners of the Company of approximately HK$13.2
million as compared to profit recorded for the year ended 31 March
2017 of approximately HK$12.6 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in gross profit and the provision reversed
for impairment of trade receivables, while partially offset by the non-
recurring listing expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Setting aside the listing expenses, the Group’s net profit for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would be approximately HK$26.8 million
(2017: HK$17.7 million).

Final dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Capital structure

The Shares were listed on the GEM by way of Share Offer of
150,000,000 Shares at a price of HK$0.47 per share on 29
September 2017. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

Liquidity, financial resource and funding

We financed our operations primarily through cash generated from
our operating activities. During the year ended 31 March 2018, we
did not have any bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2018, we had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$62.9 million (2017:
approximately HK$23.1 million), which comprised bank balances
and bank overdrafts.

Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents have been and are
expected to continue to be operating costs and capital expenditure.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis ==

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 March 2018 was nil (2017:
15.0%). It was calculated by dividing total obligations under total
bank borrowings by total equity as at the end of each reporting
period multiplied by 100%.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and bank balances and maintain a strong and healthy
liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage of
future growth opportunities.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

In preparation for the Listing, the Company underwent a corporate
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”), the details of which
are set out in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” of the Prospectus. Save as disclosed herein, there
was no significant investment, material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no significant
investment held by the Group.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this report, the Group
did not have other plans for material investments or capital assets
as of 31 March 2018.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of our Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Group. As such, the Directors are of the view that the Group does
not have significant exposure to foreign exchange risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

Change of Group assets

As at 31 March 2018, no asset of the Group was pledged as
security for bank borrowing or any other financing facilities (2017:
Nil).

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately HK$2.2 million, which was used in the purchase of
plant and equipment.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN Wk DM

Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant capital
commitments.

Segment information

Management considers that the Group had only one operating
segment which is mentioned in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Information of employees

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 46 full-time employees
working in Hong Kong (31 March 2017: 39). The total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments incurred during the year ended 31
March 2018 were approximately HK$18.9 million (year ended 31
March 2017: HK$13.8 million).

Employees are remunerated based on their qualifications, position
and performance. The remuneration offered to employees generally
includes salaries, allowances and discretionary bonus. Various
types of training were provided to the employees.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes is set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statement.

Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Business objectives up to
31 March 2018 as stated in the

i

o

RIZE-N\F=ZA=+—0  AEREIBEREIARE

FEEN
ERERATEERA—BEEHH  HERRGANBREM
5o

EEEH

RZZ-N\EZA=1+—0 AEEREETEN2BES
WBA(ZE—+F=A=+—H 39A) HE-_ZE—NF=F
Z+—BIEFENEIXRALE(BEEEFM N E1808E8
T(HE-ZT—+tE=ZA=1+—HIFE : 138FEET) °

BEEFMIIRIBRENER - Bl LRIRME 46 T &8 M
—REFEFE  RMREIBIEAL - NEERESRESESE -

NARBBHERT B B AR A B ISR M i 22
EREREEREERLE

BEMAMEE —T-N\F=ZA=+—H L BHNBREEMRH
A EREASEEREBERLEANOT

Actual business progress up to

Business Strategies Prospectus 31 March 2018

as stated in the Prospectus BRERFMBBZE-_Z-N\E=A=+—AH BE-Z-N\F=ZA=+-HLENWEEEE

B E 2 AT AR IS0 = i

Expanding our market share and . To take out surety bonds for two The Group submitted certain tenders for

competing for more wet trades projects contracts projects with surety bond requirements for

which require the issue of surety bonds the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2018. The Group will utilise the proceeds
for the coming projects with surety bond
requirements.

BABRMHTSEEELFRES J MR G DIELHBARE RELTRABZE-_ZE-—N\F=ZA=+—HH

HEENREREKTIZER
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Business Strategies
as stated in the Prospectus
HBREREHEBLER

Management Discussion and Analysis ==

Business objectives up to

31 March 2018 as stated in the
Prospectus
BRERMBBE_S—N\E=A=1+—H
LHEKBE

BEE W& D

Actual business progress up to

31 March 2018
BE-Z2-\E=A=1+—-HLEHNEREK
ER

Further strengthening our manpower

IR EAFIATF

Acquisition of machinery and equipment

BEMRSR N RE

Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting
fees and other listing expenses borne by the Company) amounted
to approximately HK$41.3 million. After the Listing, a part of these

To hire one site agent, one assistant site
agent, one assistant quantity surveyor
and one safety officer to cater for two
newly awarded wet trades projects

To hire an accountant for financial
reporting purpose

Provide training to our existing and
newly recruited staff and/or sponsor
our staff to attend training courses on
occupational health and safety

SHEAMBEE - —RBEMRT

T —EPBEIHIEER—RLEE
BE - UREAENRMERKIEAS
4

N

BE__
= AR

EEHEIARITII SR E T

REFIRA LI FH B THREE
R/REPHERMOB T2 BBMERRR
Z2EIERZ

Purchase three forklifts, six plaster
spraying machines and 650 sets of
parts for plaster spraying machines

BE=ANE - NEPRERK 650
ENFE AN

FRESERE

proceeds has been applied in accordance with the future plans and

use of proceeds as set out in the Prospectus.

MERIREEZRARLF

The Group has hired one site agent, two
assistant site agents, one assistant quantity
surveyor and one safety officer

The Group has internally promoted an
administrative and accounting clerk to an
accountant, who is solely responsible for
financial reporting and hired a new staff to
fill the vacancy off the administrative and
accounting clerk.

The Group has provided internal training to
staff and sponsored our staff to attend training
courses on occupational health and safety.

AEFDREF-LHETE  MApEmRT
T —EPBRIHIEER—2XE2EEE

AEEE AR —BITERGHAE RS
B - EFTREM B HR - WHEF (I8 T
HHZITH RS AR Z R

AEEESETRHEREI  XEHEET
SEARRSERRFRE S 2 2 IR FIRAR

The Group has acquired ten plaster spraying
machines and 1,000 sets of parts for plaster
spraying machines

REEEBE T B RERE N 1,000EH
AR

ETASERFER (EHMR A AR RAEN B IHE R R E M ik
SORNBMNIABET - LT - HBAMEREERBEBRER
P&V ARG &I RIS SOR SR -

“E-N\FEERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

An analysis of the utilisation of net proceeds from the Listing as at RIE—N\FZA=+—H LTHABREFENERBRIDW
31 March 2018 is set out below: mr
Planned use of Actual use of
net proceeds up to net proceeds up to
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
BE-Z-N\F BE-—Z—N\F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
FISRIEFEM FIERIEFEN
STEIEABR BRERER
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
Taking out surety bonds for contracts HEPIET IR E KEDR
we plan to tender BHRF 7.0 =
Further strengthening our manpower E—-FIRBEMAF 3.0 0.5
Acquisition of machinery and equipment IR EMEE R 2.0 2.2
Repayment of bank overdraft facility EERITEZREE 3.2 3.2
General working capital —MREEESR 2.1 2.1

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds BREBMENERKBZ - RRFEIRFAERIEEIRRTIRE

as stated in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation and AEBRRYBREZFFERRTRIEL B E- T REREHIE -
assumption of future market conditions made by the Group at the MATBREIRERNEEES R TENERERENER -

time of preparing the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied
based on the actual development of the Group’s business and the

industry.
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD wEHMBEE
The Group had no significant events from the end of the reporting AEBBARENRERERESRERESEKREE -

period to the date of this report.
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (F##&JR) (“Mr. Eric Tse”), aged 68, is the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and one of our
controlling shareholders. He was appointed as a Director on
12 April 2017 and redesignated as an executive Director and
appointed as the chairman of the Board on 14 September 2017.
Mr. Eric Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse Cement Works Company
Limited (“Eric Tse Cement Works”), a principal operating and
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and has been a director
of that company since 9 October 1997. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Eric Tse is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development, and corporate management, sales
and marketing and quality control of our Group.

Mr. Eric Tse has over 35 years of experience in the wet trades
industry. Mr. Eric Tse obtained a plasterer trade certificate, tiler
trade certificate and bricklayer trade certificate in 1996 from the
Construction Industry Training Authority.

Mr. Eric Tse is the founding president of Hong Kong Construction
Sub-Contractors Association Limited (BB ZEEX N BB SH
fR/A7])and had acted as the president of the association until
he retired in 2011. Mr. Eric Tse was named permanent honorary
president of Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors Association
Limited in 2011. Mr. Tse was a course instructor of bricklaying,
plastering and tiling course organised by Construction Industry
Training Authority from 1977 to 1978. Mr. Eric Tse has been the
president of Association of Plastering Sub-Contractors Limited
CRKEtHEERAE])since 1997 and has been named as the
founding president from 2015 to present.

Mr. Eric Tse is the elder brother of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen and father of
Ms. Tse Ming Hei.

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (##&&) (‘Mr. CK Tse”), aged 66, is an
executive Director and one of our controlling shareholders. He was
appointed as a Director on 12 April 2017 and redesignated as an
executive Director of our Company on 14 September 2017. Mr.
CK Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse Cement Works and has been
a director of that company since 9 October 1997. Mr. CK Tse is
responsible for formulating corporate and business strategies and
making major operation decisions of our Group.

Mr. CK Tse has over 34 years of experience in wet trades industry.
Mr. CK Tse obtained the tiler trade certificate ($§F THAEEE)
granted by Construction Industry Training Authority (Zi& 231485 )
and Vocational Training Council Hong Kong (&5 3) in
May 1999.

Mr. CK Tse is the younger brother of Mr. Eric Tse and the uncle of
Ms. Tse Ming Hei.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Tse Ming Hei (#181&) , aged 30, is the chief executive officer
and an executive Director of our Company and the head of human
resources, finance and administration, occupational health and safety
and operation of our Group. She was appointed as a Director on 12
April 2017 and redesignated as an executive Director of our Company
on 14 September 2017. Ms. Tse joined our Group as the head of
human resources, finance and administration of Eric Tse Cement
Works on 1 May 2014. She is also a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”).

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Tse was a management officer of
Nova Insurance Consultants Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Nova Risk Services Holdings Limited from August 2011 to July
2018.

Ms. Tse graduated from University College London in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree in economics in August
2009. She then obtained a master of science degree in insurance
and risk management with merit at Cass Business School, The City
University of London in September 2010.

Ms. Tse is the daughter of Mr. Eric Tse and the niece of Mr. Tse
Chun Kuen.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Keniji (Z#83t), aged 37, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. He is a
member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Wong has extensive experience in business management
and operation supervision. Mr. Wong has been employed by
Champway Technology Ltd. since November 2005 and became its
operation director since January 2013. Mr. Wong was a technical
manager in Champway Technology Ltd. from November 2005 to
December 2012 where he was in charge of various projects. Mr.
Wong oversaw the daily operation, quality control and research
development of a biodiesel pilot plant from 2006 to 2008. Mr.
Wong was in charge of designing an industrial scale biodiesel
refinery plant from 2008 to 2010 and he was responsible for
sourcing equipment, coordinating with contractors, vendors and
consultants. Furthermore, in the period of 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wong
was in charge of leading the production team in carrying out testing
and commissioning of the biodiesel plant and the daily production
operation after finishing the testing and commissioning and was
responsible for maintaining production related licenses. In his
current position as the operation director, Mr. Wong is responsible
for overseeing the daily operation, fleet supervision, local biodiesel
promotion and liaison with government bodies and other external
communications. Also, Mr. Wong is currently the sole director of Fai
Yeung Trading Company Limited.

Mr. Wong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor of science degree in May 2003 and was placed on
the Dean’s List for the academic year 2002/2003. He then obtained
a master of philosophy degree in December 2005. Mr. Wong also
obtained a Certificate of Competence in Safety Management of
Dangerous Substances from the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in March 2006.
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Ms. Chung Lai Ling (%), aged 56, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. She
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. She is
responsible for providing independent judgement and advising on
the issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group.

Ms. Chung worked as an administration officer at Maunsell
Consultants Asia Limited. (currently known as AECOM Asia
Company Limited) from April 2001 to June 2006. Ms. Chung
worked in Care & Health Limited, a subsidiary of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (Stock code: 896, the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) in its
health care business over 10 years from July 2006 to February
2017, with the last position as director.

Ms. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from York University
in Canada in June 1987.

Mr. Tang Chi Wai (¥8%{&), aged 44, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017.
He is chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in auditing and
accounting. Mr. Tang has been serving as a financial controller,
company secretary and authorised representative of Universal
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026, the shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
since June 2008. Mr. Tang has been responsible for financial and
accounting functions as well as secretarial and compliance related
matters of the aforesaid company.

Mr. Tang has been an independent non-executive director of
(1) CHerish Holdings Limited (stock code: 2113, the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since
September 2016, (2) Xin Point Holdings Limited (stock code: 1571,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since June 2017 and (3) ISP Global Limited (stock code:
8487, the shares of which are listed on GEM) since December 2017.

Mr. Tang graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a bachelor of arts (honours) degree in accountancy in November
1996. He has been a practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April 2001
and a Certified Internal Auditor of the Institute of Internal Auditors since
November 2015. Mr. Tang has also been a holder of the Practitioner’s
Endorsement from The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since August 2015.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management
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Over the years, Mr. Tang has also obtained various professional
qualifications and memberships including the following:

Professional qualifications

ZER  BEEMESUTIRBEXEBREE SN

Dates of admission

HEEK AR
Member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants September 2003
hEFMEAMREE s ZET=FNA
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants January 2005
BFaARSHMAEEFREE —TERF—A
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants September 2009
ERGHMAGEREE —ZETNFNA
Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong July 2010
BB EAREA —E—TFLA
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators July 2015
HEFTMERITRABRAGEAAREE —E-RFtA
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries July 2015
ERFTMELAEERGE —E-AFtEA
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors April 2015
EEEEERERER ZE-hENHA

Senior Management

Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei (£7&ER), aged 30, is our Group’s financial
controller and company secretary. He is responsible for the overall
financial management and reporting and company secretarial
matters of our Group.

Mr. Tsoi has over 7 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Tsoi worked in Shinewing (HK)
CPA Limited from July 2012 to December 2014, his last position
was a senior accountant Il. He then worked in KPMG China from
December 2014 to January 2017, his last position was an audit
manager.

Mr. Tsoi obtained a bachelor’s degree of accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010. He was
admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) in March 2014. He has been a
practising Certified Public Accountant of the HKICPA since March
2018.
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INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholder value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of corporate
governance as one of the key elements in creating shareholder
value. The Company is also committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance that can protect and promote the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability
of the Company. For corporate governance purpose, the Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules since the Listing Date
up to the date of this report. To the best knowledge of the Board,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code from the Listing Date up to 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing, as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors in respect of the
shares of the Company (the “Required Standard of Dealing”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Required Standard of
Dealing and there was no event of non-compliance during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018.

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including but not limited to formulating and approving
the overall strategies and business performance of the Company,
monitoring the financial performance and internal control as well
as overseeing the risk management system of the Company and
monitoring the performance of senior executives. The Board is
also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including the development and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of
the Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for
any legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their
duties.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Daily operation and management of the business of the Group,
inter alia, the implementation of strategies are delegated to the
executive Directors along with other senior executives. Execution
of operational matters and applicable authority are delegated to
the management by the Board with clear directions. They report
periodically to the Board on their work and business decisions.

Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board as at the date of this report is set out
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenii
Ms. Chung Lai Ling
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among
the members of the Board are set out in “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 13 to 16 of this report.

The number of independent non-executive Directors in proportion
to the whole Board is higher than what is required by Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules which requires that independent non-
executive directors of a listed issuer represent at least one-third
of the board. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board and at least one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Considering the breadth
of experience of both the executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors and the nature of the Group’s business,
the Board considers that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role
in the Board as they bring an impartial view on the Company’s
strategies, performance and control, as well as ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account. All independent
non-executive Directors possess appropriate academic,
professional qualifications or related financial management
experience. None of the independent non-executive Directors
held any other offices in the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or is interested in any shares of the Company. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with the criteria set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 14 September 2017 and the Company has
signed letters of appointment with each of the independent non-
executive Directors on 14 September 2017. The service contracts
with the executive Directors and the letter of appointment with each
of the independent non-executive Directors are for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. The service
contracts and letters of appointment are subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and the applicable GEM Listing Rules.
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According to Article 108 of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general
meeting of the Company, provided that every Director shall retire
from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Article 112 of
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company
provides that Directors who are appointed to fill casual vacancies
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting after
their appointment, and are subject to re-election by shareholders of
the Company.

Two Directors will retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 27 July 2018. The
two retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
separate ordinary resolutions will be put forward to the shareholders
of the Company in relation to the proposed re-election of the two
retiring Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The role of chairman remains separate from that of the chief
executive officer to enhance their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility. Mr. Tse Chun Yuen was the
Chairman of the Board throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
Ms. Tse Ming Hei was the chief executive officer of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Group acknowledges the requirement under code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code that directors participate in continuous
professional development. The Group also acknowledges the
importance of adequate and ample continuing professional
development for the Directors for a sound and effective internal
control system and corporate governance. In this regard, the Group
has always encouraged the Directors to attend relevant training
courses to receive the latest news and knowledge regarding
corporate governance.

According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
March 2018 is as follows:

Continuous
professional
development
programmes
Executive Directors
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman) Yes
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Yes
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (Chief Executive Officer) Yes
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenii Yes
Ms. Chung Lai Ling Yes
Mr. Tang Chi Wai Yes

The nature of continuous professional development programmes
are reading seminar materials and updates as well as attending
training courses provided by the Company relating to the latest
development of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.

The Company will provide timely and regular training to the Directors
to ensure that they keep abreast with the current requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established with defined
written terms of reference, which are posted on the website of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.nobleengineering.com.hk. All the Board
committees responsibly report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.
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The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at the
Company’s expense.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the CG Code which include developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and disclosures in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2017. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms.
Chung Lai Ling, an independent non-executive Director, and other
members include Mr. Tang Chi Wai, an independent non-executive
Directors and Ms. Tse Ming Hei, an executive Director. The written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on the
appropriate policy and structures for all aspects of Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and considered that they are fair and reasonable
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 September
2017. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Tse Chun
Yuen, the chairman and executive Director, and other members
include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji and Mr. Chung Lai Ling,
both independent non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the website
of the Stock Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review and
assess the composition of the Board and independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on appointment of new Directors of the Company.
In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee considers the merit of the candidates
against objective criteria and with due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity is considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of service and time to be devoted as a director. The
Nomination Committee will also take into account factors relating to
the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 29 September 2017.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Tang Chi Wai,
an independent non-executive Director, and other members
include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji and Ms. Chung Lai Ling,
both independent non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information and reporting process, internal control procedures and
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors and arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules which requires that at least one of the members of the
Audit Committee is an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
related financial management expertise and that the Audit
Committee comprises a minimum of three members and be chaired
by an independent non-executive Director.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 comply
with applicable accounting standards, GEM Listing Rules and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results
of the Company for the six months ended 30 September 2017
as well as the third quarterly results of the Company for the nine
months ended 31 December 2017 prior to their publication.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for considering, reviewing and/or
approving matters relating to, among others, the financial and
operating performance, as well as, the overall strategies and policies
of the Company. Additional meetings are held when significant
events or important issues are required to be discussed and
resolved.
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Details of all Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board
committee meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2018 are
as follows:
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Attendance/Number of meetings

HERE,EERE
Audit Committee
Board meeting meeting
EEEeR EREEEER
Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen AHRIR & 7/7 =
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen FRBZ A& 7/7 -
Ms. Tse Ming Hei HsEzt 6/7 =

Independent non-executive Directors BB ITEE
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Keniji =N A 3/7 2/2
Ms. Chung Lai Ling BBt 3/7 2/2
Mr. Tang Chi Wai B S S 3/7 2/2

For the year ended 31 March 2018, no general meeting was held.
As the Company was newly listed on 29 September 2017, the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee did not hold
any meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that procedures
are followed and facilitating communications among Directors as
well as with shareholders and management.

The Company has appointed Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei as its Company
Secretary.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Tsoi undertook no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed as the
external auditors of the Company. The fee paid and payable in
respect of audit services and non-audit services amounted to
approximately HK$1.0 million and approximately HK$1.9 million
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The fees incurred for non-audit services are service fees paid to HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the reporting accountant of the
Company in relation to the Listing.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be posted
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website
after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
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Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders who
made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 64 of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company. Such requisition must state the object
of business to be transacted at the meeting and must be signed
by the Requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company or the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals with general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send
their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for
overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control and
risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted by the Board and
is conducted at least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud, the Company has established risk management
procedures which comprise the following steps:

o Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;

o Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;

. Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate
the risks.

Risk identification and assessment is performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each function or operation is documented in the
Risk Registry to communicate to the Board and management for
reviews.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions has been carried out by an independent consultancy
company with staff in possession of relevant expertise to conduct
an independent review.
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The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the independent consultancy company and the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 and considered that they
are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness
of internal control systems by considering the internal control
review report and reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
concurred the same.

Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal
audit function. The Company has no internal audit function
because the Company has maintained an internal control system
and its implementation has been considered effective by the
Audit Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee
has communicated with external auditors of the Company to
understand if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless,
the Company will review the need for one on an annual basis.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate
with shareholders as follows:

Corporate communications such as annual reports, quarterly
reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.nobleengineering.com.hk;

ii. Periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

. Corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

iv. Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum
for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

V. The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company provides
services to the shareholders in respect of share registration,
dividend payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders
and the public. Enquires to the Board or the Company may be sent
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Since the Listing Date, there has been no significant change in the
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

Noble Engineering Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”, “we” or “our”) collectively have more than 35 years of
experience in undertaking wet trade works in Hong Kong. We
are committed to providing the best services we can offer to our
customers.

As a leader in the wet trades industry, staff safety, works quality
control and environmental management are our paramount
concerns. Our management system is certified under OHSAS
18001:2007 for occupational health and safety, 9001:2008
for quality management, and 14001:2004 for environmental
management by the International Organisation for Standardisation
(1ISO).

Comprehensive remuneration and welfare packages are offered to
retain and nurture our staff. We also extend our care to the broader
society by making various donations to charities and industry
associations.

We would like to present in detail below our efforts in fulfilling our
corporate social responsibility in () Environmental and (Il) Social
aspects for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “review period”).

1. ENVIRONMENTAL
1.1 Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality Policy

For the applicable ISO certifications of our Group, we
set up a “Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality
Policy”. The policy sets out the following principles:

= to ensure the Group is in compliance with
applicable standards, legal and other
requirements and to be mindful of continual
improvement and ultimate target in having zero
accident;

- to employ reasonable resources to achieve
the objectives and targets relevant to continual
improvement;

- to review the effectiveness of the integrated
management system continuously;

- to ensure effective communication among staff,
customers and interested parties;

- to advance engineering technology and idea;
- to acquire products and services to professional
standards, to minimize environmental impact

and prevent injury or ill-health; and

- to enhance company and staff competence and
efficiency in related works.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

1.1

Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality Policy
(Continued)

Specifically, we devised areas of concern and
standard procedures for the following:

- Air pollution control: ensure strict compliance
with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.
311) in areas including “construction dust” and
“open burning”.

Procedures are set up to mitigate and control
dust or air pollutants emission. The procedures
cover areas relevant to storing, handling and
transporting construction materials, using tools
and vehicles, and using eco-friendly fuel.

- Waste control: ensure strict compliance with
the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation (Cap. 354C) in the handling of
“general waste”, “construction waste” and

“chemical waste”.

Procedures are set up for handling and
disposing wastes, setting up and maintaining
waste storage conditions, and regulating
protective gear for personnel handling different
types of wastes.

- Noise pollution control: ensure strict
compliance with the Noise Control Ordinance
(Cap. 400) in terms of “construction time
regulation” and “construction noise mitigation
and control”.

Procedures are set up to regulate the allowable
time and the specific types of equipment for
conducting percussive piling works. Measures
to mitigate the impact of noise pollution such
as choosing tools that would emit less noise,
scheduling noisy works to be further away from
residential areas, schools and hospitals, and
installing noise shield around equipment that is
expected to emit a lot of noise.

- Water pollution control: ensure strict

compliance with the Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (Cap. 358) concerning sewage
that would result from concrete works, vehicle
cleaning, other construction procedures, and
site canteen and toilet facilities.

Procedures are set up to regulate the discharge
of waste water into designated waste water
discharge point. Measures to prevent leakage
of waste water into non-designated discharge
point are instructed to foremen to control the
impact of waste water to the neighbouring
communities.
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1. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
1.2  Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions

We are glad to report that, due to the nature of our
trade requiring zero usage of heavy machineries, our
operations create very few emissions.

In the review period, we did not use any gas and
therefore have no relevant GHG emissions to report.
We also did not produce any hazardous wastes from
our operations.

The following presents our GHG emissions for the
review period:

, Social and Governance Report

L REGE

1.2

BERRB(DRERE ) M

AEBRARE - ARAEEITENTEEAEEHE
Mz ME - AEEEBEEEEROOBENE -

REEERE - N EEREFRE  WHAZR
HERERBHER - RPIEZET TEELEFNAES

RERY -

AT 23R EBAHEMEEREHRBER

GHG emissions from vehicles: REELENREREHEK
Aspects 1.1 Unit: gram
fEmE1.1 BB
Nitrogen oxides REW 2,633.93
Sulphur oxides rnk=R et 53.35
Respiratory suspended particles AT IS i 193.93
GHG emissions from mobile combustion BEREREENREREIEM
sources:
Aspects 1.2 Unit: kg
Bm1.2 B FR
Scope 1 1
Carbon dioxide —& bk 8,564.78
Methane FRGE 19.28
Nitrous oxide —&t=" 1,243.16
Indirect GHG emission: BiZRERBEEEN :
Unit: kg

(CO, equivalent)
Aspects 1.2 B TR
Bm1.2 (Z&EtIREE
Scope 2 #[E2
Indirect GHG Emissions R ER BN 15,629.67
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RIR - HEREBRE

1 ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) . BRI (&)
.3  Use of Resources 1.3 ERFA

We strive to lower energy consumption, fully RO NEREHQBEFRIDERERE - THFIA
utilise resources, and recycle wastes in daily office RN Bl EEY) o
operations.
Our staff recycle used papers for daily printing, BMME IR BEITHNRERKERRER FREE
save up used envelopes for internal communication HUMHRAESERIEERAR  RREREEFEL
or drafting, and would prioritize using electronic FRAEFEBANMIETEIAR « @fEITEIERE R
communication means over printed copies for daily WoAs ASR B RE AR B UKL -
operations. Recycling bins are placed beside printers
to encourage scrap paper recycling.
To reduce the use of foam lunch boxes, we encourage BMSEEE I AT ETABEFEARERE AR
staff to bring their own lunch boxes to work. They FEE NERESIHEEFHARERAEIX2EH
are also reminded to set the temperature of the air IRIRIKE o
conditioning at an eco-friendly level of 25 degrees
Celsius.
The following presents our direct electricity ATF2FACEHHERANEEZREE
consumption for the review period:
Direct energy consumption in total and intensity BEEGHREREERZE
Aspects 2.1 Unit In’000
EmEm2.1 B BTt
Electricity usage kWh 24.81
REE TR
Electricity usage intensity kWh/no. of offices (inc HQ + site offices) 24.81
RAEEE TR,/ MAREE (BIEQRAED + B IREE)

Il. SOCIAL n #He

i Employment and Labour Practices 1 ERRBEIESR

Our people 8T

Wet trades works are highly labour intensive. In view of
this, the Group pays due regard to setting its human
resources and work safety policies.

We offer remuneration packages to staff which
are commensurate with their positions, duties,
qualifications and experience to reward them for
their contributions to our success. Our executive
directors who have vast experience in the industry
would directly participate in the budgeting process of
remuneration packages for the Group. This helps to
ensure the remuneration and welfare offered are at a
competitive level and can retain talents for the Group’s
development.

TKTREBSESHTEEE - FERI - AEEE
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SOCIAL (Continued)

1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

To better monitor our staff’s career development
progress, adequate appraisals are conducted. We
would offer promotions and salary increment as
rewards to outstanding staff, while at the same
time we would counsel staff who require further
improvements in their performance. They are also
welcome to communicate their concerns with our
management at their respective appraisals.

Our management values equal opportunities at the
workplace. The Group fully complies with laws and
regulations prohibiting unfair discrimination, including
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the Race
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602) and the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 482). We build equality
in the workplace by a fair and just recruitment process
in which we would assess people based solely on their
experience, skills and qualifications. An applicant’s
gender, religion, age or skin colour would not in any
degree affect his or her chance of being recruited.
The same principle applies to our staff appraisals and
counselling.

The Group has zero tolerance to using forced or child
labour. As a member of the construction industry, we
are well aware of the problem of illegal immigrants
working at construction sites and are fully against it.
Our HR & Administration Department has adopted
stringent internal controls in the recruitment process to
mitigate the risk of hiring illegal immigrants.

We maintain high standards of business ethics and
require our employees to abide by the Group’s code of
conduct as stated in our staff handbook.

Protecting staff’s health and safety

In developing our business, we are also committed to
protecting our staff’s health and safety.

Our OHSAS 18001:2007 certification is a recognition
of our compliance efforts with occupational health
and safety standards. To ensure effective oversight
over safety related issues, the Group sets up safety
committees both at the corporate level and the
construction site level. Safety committee meetings are
held on a monthly basis with the executive Directors
to set strategic guidelines for implementation of our
occupational health and safety measures relating to
our operation and to monitor the effectiveness of our
safety management measures.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)
Protecting staff’s health and safety (continued)

At the construction site level, site safety committees
are also established on a project basis to implement
on-site safety measures including regular safety
inspections to maintain safe working environment,
review of safety plan and update of risk assessment for
the works, review of safety incidents and follow up of
any unsafe practices.

We provide site safety induction briefing sessions
for workers on the first day of work and provide
tool box training once a month for workers on site,
including subcontractors’ employees. Site inspections
are carried out at least once a week by our safety
supervisors to ensure strict compliance with the
statutory occupational health and safety laws, rules
and regulations.

Effective promotion and communication of safety
procedures are maintained through, among others,
establishing safety bulletin and detailed record of
accidents, holding regular internal and external safety
meetings, documenting safety measures and issues
identified for each construction project by preparing
safety reports and training records.

In the review period, we are glad that no fatalities
occurred at either our head office or construction sites.
For lost days due to work injuries, there were only 16
cases of work injuries which resulted in man-day loss
of 2,765 days.

Training and Development

Being aware that labour shortage and ageing problem
among the existing workforce have been the major
concerns of the construction industry in recent years,
our executive Directors are dedicated to train up
ever more talent to contribute to the construction
industry. In the review period, the Group continued to
participate in the “Subcontractor Cooperative Training
Scheme” organised by the Construction Industry
Council. We have assigned competent staff who had
passed professional skills tests administered by the
Vocational Training Council and the Construction
Industry Training Authority to be in charge of training
applicants to the scheme.

The other types of safety training we organised include
safety meetings, fire drill, “tool box” training and safety
supervisor course. For safety related site training, the
induction training would last for 1 hour and the tool
box training for 30 minutes. The total number of hours
trained inclusive of both types of training was 31 hours
during the review period.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

1.2 Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Apart from regulating our employees on environmental
aspects, the Group is also concerned with its
subcontractors’ environmental performance. This can
be seen from its selection process and performance
assessment process on subcontractors. During the
selection of new subcontractors, key concerns would
be whether the subcontractor had obtained ISO
certificates relevant to environmental management,
and whether the subcontractor was involved in
environmental litigations or complaints in the past.
Once engaged, assessment on subcontractor’s
performance over environmental aspects would
be conducted half yearly to ensure consistent
environmental performance.

Whenever we need to procure and source materials,
we would seek them through a fair and unbiased
tender process. Selection criteria include the price
offered by the contractor, their capabilities to meet our
requirement in terms of product and service quality, as
well as service support.

Service pledge to our customer

The cornerstone to our success has been the trust
we built between ourselves and our customers. We
have set up customer communication channels,
including headquarter hotline and construction site
representatives, for handling customer enquiries and
complaints. We pledge to resolve any enquiries and
complaints to the satisfaction of our customers and
deliver the best construction service we can offer.

As a recognition of our excellent service, in 2017 we
were named an outstanding subcontractor by one of
our customers.

Anti-Corruption

Over the years, we witnessed no suspected or
actual bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
activities occurring within the Group. We stand firmly
by our anti-corruption policies and procurement
practices as stated in our internal manuals.
Acceptance of kickbacks, commissions or any
forms of benefits are strictly prohibited during any
procurement, contract negotiations or other business
dealings.

The manuals also outline guidance over conflicts
of interest, intellectual property rights, privacy and
information confidentiality, bribery and corruption, and
equal opportunities.

Giift policy in our internal manuals clearly states the
required process and procedure for handling and
accepting gifts and advantages.
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Il. SOCIAL (Continued)

1.3

Community Involvement

The following presents our donations to a number of
charitable organisations dedicated to help Hong Kong
society:

a. Sik Sik Yuen

We extend our care to the community by our
donations to Sik Sik Yuen, a religious charitable
organization. The organisation pledges to
provide education services, social services for
the elderly, and medical services. We hope our
donations can help in promoting these charity
services and help the needy.

b. Post Crisis Counselling Network

The organization is a “cross-cultural, non-
religious, non-political, and non-profit
organization in Hong Kong, dedicated to
provide humanitarian assistance addressing
people’s mental health and psychosocial
wellbeing in the midst of an emergency”.
We are delighted to have contributed to the
organization’s efforts in delivering emergency
responses to major crises or accidents
occurring in or related to Hong Kong.

c. Construction Charity Fund

Well aware that work injury is a major concem to
the construction industry, we made donations
to the Construction Charity Fund during the
review period to help provide economic relief
to the families of the injury victims. Since 2009,
apart from economic relief, the organization had
been giving out care and counselling services
to the victims’ families in recognition of the
contributions made by work injury victims to the
construction industry.

d. Hong Kong Guide Dogs Association

The organization’s mission is to “offer the
visually impaired citizens of Hong Kong the
option of using a guide dog as their primary
mobility aid.” It specializes in the breeding,
raising and training of guide dogs, while at the
same time providing comprehensive training to
guide dog applicants on the safe and effective
use of guide dogs. We hope the donations we
made can help the association to extend its
services to more visually impaired people.
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FUTURE APPROACH TOWARDS SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

In the future, we will:

° Continue our efforts in environmental protection and stringent
monitoring of subcontractor’s environmental performance;

o Uphold our high standards in occupational health and safety
and ensure our people can enjoy a fruitful career path with us;
and

o Nurture more and more industry professionals and youth to

contribute to Hong Kong society.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of wet trade
works services. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018, which includes a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis using financial
key performance indicators of the Group’s business, particulars
of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, and discussion on
the Company’s environmental policies and performance and the
relationships with its stakeholders, can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The review
forms part of this directors’ report.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 12 April 2017. The companies now comprising the Group
underwent the Reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company
on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group. Further details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The shares of the Company
were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of public offer on
29 September 2017.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of this report. The state of affairs of the
Group and the Company as at 31 March 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2018.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held
on 27 July 2018 (the “AGM”). For determining eligibility to attend
and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 24 July 2018 to 27 July 2018, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar of the company in Hong Kong,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 23 July 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the three financial years is set out on page 96 in this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2018 amounted to approximately HK$348,000 (2017: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year ended 31 March 2018, together with the reasons thereof, are
set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 14
September 2017 (the “Scheme”). The terms of the Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing
Rules. A summary of the particulars of the Scheme as required
under Rule 23.09 of the GEM Listing Rules is set out in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes
connected transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners amounted to approximately HK$39.3 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentage of the
Group’s aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 50.5%, while the percentage of the
Group’s total revenue attributable to the five largest customers in
aggregate was approximately 90.5%.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest subcontractor was approximately
4.9% of the total direct costs paid for the period, while the
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
subcontractors and suppliers accounted for approximately 15.1%
of the total direct costs paid.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Board during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen ™tV (Chairman)
(Appointed on 12 April 2017)

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Mot )
(Appointed on 12 April 2017)

Ms. Tse Ming Hei ™ot ") (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 12 April 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenii

(Appointed on 11 September 2017)
Ms. Chung Lai Ling

(Appointed on 11 September 2017)
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

(Appointed on 11 September 2017)

In accordance with the amended and restated articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by
rotation at such annual general meeting.

Note 1: Mr. Tse Chun Yuen, Mr. Tse Chun Kuen and Ms. Tse Ming Hei were
appointed as Directors on 12 April 2017 and were re-designated as
executive Directors on 14 September 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 13 to 16 of the report.

EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy comprises primarily a
fixed component (in the form of a base salary) and a variable
component (which includes discretionary bonus and other merit-
based payments), taking into account other factors such as their
experience, level of responsibility, individual performance, the
profitability of our Group and general market conditions.

Our Remuneration Committee will meet once each year to discuss
remuneration related matters (including the remuneration of
Directors and senior management) and review the remuneration
policy of the Group. It has been decided that the Remuneration
Committee would determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 March
2018 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statement.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as to the related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not enter into or have any
management and administration contracts in respect of the whole
or any principal business of the Company.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As confirmed by the Group’s compliance adviser, Kingsway Capital
Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), save as to the compliance
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and the
Compliance Adviser dated 16 May 2017, none of the Compliance
Adviser or its directors, employees or associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in the Group or in the share
capital of any member of the Group which is required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, or has any
other conflict of interests with the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Except as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation” below and the share option scheme disclosures in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2018 were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, or the
Company’s subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

ESREIBTRAEBRA D AREMAEEEMBRE - R
HREERNESRAR

RZE-N\F=ZA=+—R  ARARNEERETZTHRAEBRER
Bl E AR EE (E& R s RS RN (B RBEHRS )
FEXVER) Bein - BRI REEE R EERIEE S B GRDIE
XV EBEE 7 F8 53 BRZAME AN R BB 2 P e ok 2 (B IR IR
EHEMEGEOECCR AREFRENERIRR) - HAERR
RIEE 7 N B RIS 362 (FFEMERM - SREGEM LT
A58 5.46 £ 5.67 RAME AR R MR PIAORER LARKEIT

REQXBEBERNER

Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Total number of Shares shareholding
®E B enitE ROEE RETDL
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen et Interest in a controlled corporation; 450,000,000 75%
interest held jointly with another person
AR 5 A ) RiEAE R
HLE fth A+ R A B
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen ™ete) Interest in a controlled corporation; 450,000,000 75%

PHIREL e A )

interest held jointly with another person
S A s
HLE fh A R REE RS

Note: Land Noble Holdings Limited (“Land Noble”) is beneficially owned as to
50% by Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. On 9 May
2017, Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen entered into the an
acting in concert confirmation to acknowledge and confirm, among other
things, that they are parties acting in concert within the meaning of the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Tse Chun Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Land Noble.

Long position in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation — Land Noble

HisF - mIERERLE (B ) 5P AR LR RE L BB
50% K 650% o R=ZF—+tFHANA - HIRFAERFE S FEZTT—
HITEERE - UAEBRIER (AP ERE) FER—HTOANL (EELE
BRAJHMIERE GFFEY) - IRIFZ S REENEH - HIRF A ERFIRESE
ERE AR IFEZ R E R

REBEEEBERNER - St

Name of associated Number of Percentage
Name corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share(s) held of interest
] HEEEERE B/ REME RO EE ERED
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Land Noble Beneficial owner 1 50%
BRI A =i ERBEAA
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Land Noble Beneficial owner 1 50%
s e =il BERBEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2018, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

FERRRAMALTRAL ARG REBRONESRAR

REZZB-NF=ZA=+—R0  REFMH  UTAT(EFHER
A EITHABBRIN RAR B IARRE R P A LR B
R E AR S M EGEPIEXVERE 2 M3 #i & AR AL
AIRE R AR ENERRAR NAELTRARRREZES RS
GBI 336 RIF B ERMAMERSOAZ T

Percentage of

interest in
Capacity/Nature of interest Number of share(s) held our Company
EARATH
B REmiE B EE EEED
Land Noble Beneficial owner 450,000,000 75%
St EmAA
Ms. Or So Lan Mete ) Interest of spouse 450,000,000 75%
TR R 2 - ) feiBiEs
Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang M2 Interest of spouse 450,000,000 75%
BEEp i) [IRREr
Notes: Kt -
1. Ms. Or So Lan is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Yuen. She is deemed, or taken 1. T EBZ 1+ BRI EERIINE o Bt - LEERAERAIME - X

to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Yuen is interested in
for the purposes of the SFO.

2. Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. She is deemed,
or taken to be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Kuen is
interested in for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, so far as is known
to the Directors, no other persons, other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” above, had any interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of Mr. Tse Chun Yuen, Mr. Tse Chun Kuen and Land Noble
(together called, the “Covenanting Shareholders”) has confirmed
to the Company of their respective due compliance with the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report.

Qur independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition and were satisfied that
the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition had been duly complied
with and enforced since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board had not received
any written confirmation from any of our Directors in respect of
interest in any business (other than our Group) which is or is likely to
be directly or indirectly in competition with our business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 25 of this
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the
public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2018.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors annual written confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
years ended 31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018
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HLB B o3t FH A RAE
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble
Engineering Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 48 to 95, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBEHRE

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Accounting for construction contract revenue, gross profit and related

receivables and liabilities

We identified the revenue
and profit recognition of
contracting service and
gross amounts due from/
to customers for contract
work as a key audit
matter due to significant
management judgements
and estimation are required
in the determination of
the total outcome of the
contracting service contracts
as well as the percentage
of completion of contracting
service.

Reviewing the contract sum and
budgeted costs to respective signed
contracts and budgets prepared by
management.

Understanding from management
about how the budgets were prepared
and the respective stage of completion
were determined.

Reviewing the reasonableness of key
judgements inherent in the budgets.

Obtaining the certificates issued
by customers to evaluate the

BRERER

ERNAEEERERSEE

BESNNE - EFIUREEERSEREBHYETEE

MR E R ERAEEE A
BRI & B MK R Kok
BRBZTEIED LR
e BRI B R b Et
E utF P s A B AR TS 2
Yo gt I M) T e R A K B
W/ ERNEFZAHT
PR ERERRR
BEZER -

EHHECEZEANNANTE
REERAAREREEHNE

= o
Eas

BEEERTRESWNASEER
BT THEBRIEERE

EHRENE SRR EE
o

EEE P B E AN ER
FREIASLLHAENY -

reasonableness of percentage of
completion as at year end.

e Assessing the reliability of the budgets
by comparing the actual outcome
against management’s estimation
of completed contracts on a sample
basis.

e Checking the gross amounts due
from/to customers for contract work
by agreeing the amount of progress
bilings, on a sample basis, to bilings
issued to customers.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concemn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRERAEMEERGER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income and gain

Administrative and other operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

NE=A=+-BLLFE

Yes
BEERER

EM
HABWA K Yz
TR R A AR 2 B SE
BERA

ERETIS MR A
FR1STER

RABHRB AEIEFRE
ek

Eamings per share attributable to owners of the Company 22 R A A FE15 SR Z 7

— Basic and diluted earnings per share

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

—BRERREERT
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2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE FET FHT
5 408,944 285,430
(366,545) (255,612)

42,399 29,818

5 5,392 71
(28,909) (13,691)

9 (215) (177)
6 18,667 16,021
10 (5,426) (3,465)
13,241 12,556

HK$0.03 HK$0.03

11 0.03 87T 0.03/7T

BEMI T SR AR S

B BFHBER AR & B TS IR M G 12 0 EE -

BT IR AR R )



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR RE

Asat31 March 2018 R=—ZE—N\F=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
P EE FERT FAT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Plant and equipment BB K i& A 14 3,379 2,008
Deferred tax assets RETRIBEE 25 - 179
3,379 2,182
Current assets RBEE
Gross amounts due from customers for contract work  JEWE P A #) TRk IB48%8 16 19,074 28,608
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE MR KIA 17 63,732 48,074
Bank balances RITHERR 18 62,915 29,389
Restricted cash SERHIRE 19 820 80
146,541 106,151
Total assets HMEE 149,920 108,333
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARATEEAEEER
Capital and reserves EXR#iE
Share capital BN 20 6,000 10,000
Reserves E4=] 21 108,831 31,603
Total equity EREEE 114,831 41,608
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEARE 25 402 -
Current liabilities REEE
Gross amounts due to customers for contract work BN EF A X T2 TE45E 16 3,515 7,733
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMKIE 23 29,096 29,148
Amounts due to directors EEEFHE 24 = 20,432
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 6,246
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFriEHi B (E 2,076 3,171
34,687 66,730
Total liabilities e E 35,089 66,730
Total equity and liabilities HEZRARS 149,920 108,333
Net current assets REBEETFE 111,854 39,421
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 115,233 41,608

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2018
and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen

HEMBREN T N\ERNA T BEESSHERKET

T WA TEEHEEFTERE ¢

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen

HIRR % HIREZ
Director Director
BF BF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BEM M SRR AR & I S IRR AR FR D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

Balance as at 1 April 2016 RIE-RENA-RER
Issue of ordinary shares BTEAR
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - £ /s 2 Az 108

Balance as at 31 March 2017 WZE—+FE=A=t-B&H

Balance as at 1 April 2017 RZS—tENA—-AEH
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year R R 2 ENHAE
Reorganisation i)

Shares issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue 125 Ak 1 TR{THIR M
Share issued pursuant to the share offer BERMEERTORD
Share issuance costs e

Balance as at 31 March 2018 R-B-NE=A=t-R&H

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
approximately HK$108,831,000 (2017: approximately HK$31,603,000) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
A& BRI EE Hibfite BERA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tix THET Tix THEx
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 21)
(BtE20) (WisE21) (Wz21)
- - - 19,047 19,047
10,000 - - - 10,000
- - - 12,556 12,556
10,000 - - 31,603 41,603
10,000 - - 31,603 41,603
- - - 13,241 13,241
(10,000) - 10,000 - -
4,500 (4,500) - - -
1,600 69,000 - - 70,500
- (10,513) - - (10,513)
6,000 53,987* 10,000* 44,844* 114,831

* ZEZFIERF B1EFE BRI E [ 15E47108831,00087T (=
FE—+4F : #31,603,000/87T) °

BEM MM SRR A AR B I S IRR AR FR D -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE FExT FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHESHRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEE(BA) MRS 27 8,388 (3,664)
Tax paid EABIIE (5,940) (4,172)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEERELE (B W
operating activities REFHE 2,448 (7,836)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBRERE
Interest received EHFIE 226 -
Decrease in amounts due from directors FEWESFIER L = 14,032
Purchases of plant and equipment BEWE REE (2,243) (1,188)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment & #E & :& & 18 208 1 =
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETHM(BH) BEEWN
investing activities RE&FE (2,016) 12,844
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHEESRE
Interest paid [SEREESS (215) (177)
(Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to directors fE{ = = 718 (> ) 1N (20,432) 30,432
Decrease in amount due to a related company  fE{— F'Eﬁf"ﬁﬂé‘ﬁ@ KIER L = (36,543)
Proceeds from share offer A& 1D B & FT1S 3H 59,987
Repayments of finance leases liabilities EERETEE R = 979)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEMES (BH) N
financing activities REFE 39,340 (7,267)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HBERBESSEYHE M
cash equivalents (RA) H5E 39,772 (2,259)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FPRESRBELEEY
of the year 23,143 25,402
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FERRAERBLEEY
the year 62,915 23,143
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRRLEEYERINT
cash equivalents
Bank balances R1THE R 18 62,915 29,389
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (6,246)
62,915 23,143
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMI OB TE B R AR AR & A TS SRR AUAR RS D ©

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as to the
“Group”) is principally engaged in provision of wet trades
works services.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 April 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 29 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2018, its parent and ultimate holding
company is Land Noble Holdings Limited (“Land Noble”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”") and owned as to 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (“Mr.
Eric Tse”) and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (“Mr. CK Tse”).

The addresses of the registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business of the
Company is Room 809, 8/F., Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
Tower ll, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

Prior to the corporate reorganisation undertaken in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Reorganisation”), the
group entities were under the control of Mr. Eric Tse and
Mr. CK Tse. Through the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 6 September 2017. Accordingly,
for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, the Company has been
considered as the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group throughout the years
presented. The Group comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded
as a continuing entity. The Group was under the control
of Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse prior to and after the
Reorganisation.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
as if the Company had been the holding company of the
Group throughout the years presented in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the years
presented, which include the results, changes in equity and
cash flows of the companies now comprising the Group,
have been prepared as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the years presented, or
since their respective dates of incorporation, where this is
a shorter period. The consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017 has been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in
existence at that date.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements set out in this
report have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the accounting policies
of the Group. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures

@

(®)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

The application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted
any other standard, amendment or
interpretation that has been issued but
is not yet effective.

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards
have been published but not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April
2017 or after and which the Group has
not early adopted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classffication and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to Clartfications to HKFRS 15 Revenue

HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Gustomers'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments toHKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle’
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2015-2017 Cycle?
HK(FRIC) - Foreign Currency Transactions and
Interpretation 22 Advance Consideration’
HK(FRIC) - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Interpretation 23 Treatments?
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)
Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on

or after a date to be determined.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced
new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended
in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by
introducing a fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HE-T\FZA=T—HLFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and

disclosures

(continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are
described below:

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

All recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business
model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and
equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

New standards and interpretations not

yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

(continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are

described below: (continued)

®)

With regard to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires
that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment
of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are
described below: (continued)

. The new general hedge
accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types
of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an economic
relationship. Retrospective
assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have
also been introduced.

The directors of the Company are
assessing the impact of HKFRS 9 but
anticipate that the application of HKFRS
9 in the future will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that
an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the HKFRS 15 introduces a
5-step approach revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s)
with a customer.

° Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract.

° Step 3: Determine the transaction
price.
° Step 4: Allocate the transaction

price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

o Step 5: Recognise revenue
when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises
revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. More
prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The standard permits either a full
retrospective or modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

The directors of the Company do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 15
would result in significant impact on the
amounts reported on the consolidated
financial statements. However, there will
be additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosures upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2018 #HZ—Z

2.

NEZR=+—HLLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Change in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not
yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive
model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees.
It distinguishes leases and service
contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Subject to limited exceptions
for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and
finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees.
However, the standard does not
significantly change the accounting of
lessors.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result
in the Group’s recognition of right-
of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of many of the
Group’s lease arrangements. These
assets and liabilities are currently not
required to be recognised but certain
relevant information is disclosed as
commitments to these consolidated
financial statements.

Total operating lease commitment of the
Group as at 31 March 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$379,000 (Note
28). The directors of the Group do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant
impact on the Group’s results but it is
expected that certain portion of these
lease commitments will be required
to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Except for the above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of the new and revised HKFRSs listed above
will have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BERSHBERE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 HKEBLAF

2.2.1 Consolidation 221 R4

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(@) Business combinations

Except for the Reorganisation, the
Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

(®)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed to
ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Transaction with non-controlling
interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions
with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control
or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Merger accounting for common control
combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are consolidated using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation
of the controlling party’s interest. The consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of
the date of the common control combination.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors that makes strategic decisions.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Plant and equipment
The plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives
or lease term, where applicable, as follows:

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Machinery and equipment 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessors
are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessors) are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain plant and equipment.
Leases of plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other long-term payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2.

BE-FT/\F=A=t+—BALEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “bank balances” and “restricted cash” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

211

2.12

2.13

Gross amounts due from/to customers for
contract work

A construction contract is defined in HKAS 11 as a
contract specifically negotiated for the construction
of an asset or a combination of assets that are
closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their
design, technology and functions or their ultimate
purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
and the stage of completion are measured based
on surveys of work performed. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to
the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probable.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retention are included within “trade
and other receivables”.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts
due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses).

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE-FT/\F=A=t+—BALEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if the
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period in the
countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences, arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of each reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of each reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution
plans and pays contributions to privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of each reporting period are
discounted to present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of such obligation can be
made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amounts have been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligations. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resource will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IRRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE-F/\F=A=t+—ALEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for the sale of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from contract work is recognised based
on the percentage of completion of the contracts,
provided that the percentage of contract completion
and the gross billing value of contracting work can
be measured reliably. The percentage of completion
of a contract is established by reference to the
construction works certified by the customer.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to the
extent that they have been agreed with the customer
and are capable of being reliably measured.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks: cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate bank overdrafts.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
Hong Kong dollar prime rate arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated bank
overdrafts.

The Group currently does not have a formal
interest rate hedging policy in relation to cash
flow and fair value interest rate risks as the
management considers that such risks are
insignificant to the Group. The management
monitors the Group’s exposure on an ongoing
basis and will consider hedging the interest
rate when the need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

As at 31 March 2018, if interest rates had
been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before tax for the year ended 31 March
2018 would have been decreased/increased
by Nil (2017: approximately HK$62,000).
The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred throughout the year end had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for variable-rate bank overdrafts in existence
at the end of the reporting period. The 100
basis points increased/decreased represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in those interest rates which
have the most impact on the Group over the
period until the end of next reporting period.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from trade and
other receivables, restricted cash and bank
balances. The Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event of the counterparties’
failure to perform their obligations as at the
reporting dates in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
sound credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers and counterparties. These
evaluations focus on the counterparty’s
financial position, past history of making
payments and take into account information
specific to the counterparty as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in
which the counterparty operates. Monitoring
procedures have been implemented to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivable balance at the end
of the reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

As at 31 March 2018, there was one customer
(2017: Nil) which individually contributed
over 10% of the Group’s trade and other
receivables. The aggregate amounts of trade
and other receivables from this customer
amounted to 23.9% (2017: Nil) of the Group’s
total trade and other receivables as at 31
March 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IRRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE=-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet their liquidity requirements in
the short and long term. Management believes
there is no significant liquidity risk as the Group
has sufficient financial resources to fund their
operations.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating based on
current rates at the reporting date) and the
earliest date the Group may be required to
pay.

As at 31 March 2018

Trade and other payables D5 LEMEMNE

excluding non-financial liabilities
As at 31 March 2017

Trade and other payables 5 L EMEMNFE

excluding non-financial liabilites (M E3EFEEA &)
Amounts due to directors ENEZHE
Bank overdrafts WITEX
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On demand Between Between
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one year two years five years Total
—FR —EEME MEERF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET FTET
29,096 - - 29,096
29,148 - - 29,148
20,432 - - 20,432
6,246 - - 6,246
556,826 - - 55,826




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders, to support
the Group’s stability and growth; to earn a margin
commensurate with the level of business and market
risks in the Group’s operations and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the total
interest-bearing liabilities divided by the total equity.

The gearing ratios of the Group are as follows:

Bank overdrafts RITEX
Total debt BB
Total equity e AERE
Gearing ratio BEARBLE
Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximately their
respective fair values.

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE=Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises its contract revenue according to
the percentage of work performed to date of the individual
contract of construction works as a percentage of total
contract value. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which
the contract activity is entered into and the date when the
activity is completed usually fall into different accounting
period and actual cost or revenue may be higher or lower
than estimated at the end of the reporting period, which
could affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs and variation orders prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Management regularly reviews the progress of the contracts
and the corresponding costs of the contract revenue.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE=-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
construction contract receipts in the ordinary course of
business. Revenue and other income and gain recognised
during the reporting period are as follows:

Revenue Wz

Provision of wet trades works services IRMEK TI2AR
Other income and gain Hi AR WS
Bank interest income RITHBUYA

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HEME MR EWER

Others Hih
Provision reversed for impairment
of trade receivables (Note 17(b))

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The board
of directors regards the Group’s business as a single
operating segment and reviews consolidated financial
statements accordingly. Also, the Group only engages its
business in Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment information
is presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer (a)? B (a2
Customer (b) ZF (b)
Customer (c)? P (02
Customer (d) B ()

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total
revenue of the Group.

2 The above customers represent a collective of companies within
a group.

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE
W~ HMR AR W U R 5 BE R

e MARKENZEXE BEEEBBRETEELALD
BV o FORE HIE R MR e R A IR A S s A T

BmE 5 RUGRIER E RS (Met 17())

2018 2017

S S R i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TR
408,944 285,430
228 =

1 =

54 71

5,109 =
5,392 71

EREAATNEES AT ERBARE - EELUAS
EE %G A —BE—EEHH  LEEENEAHGH
%o S ARERREBLEREL - BYt - LS
SHAH -

FHEIEEFNEN
BRI EEAEEAKEEB10%NEFPAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
206,667 73,960
N/AT RER 75,364
85,324 N/AT A3 1
N/A' REH 42,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6. BR T8 B AR F
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at R AT 8 A 2 F0BR LA S BI85
after charging:
Depreciation of assets under finance leases MEREBE NEENITE = 413
Depreciation of owned assets BEEENE 867 271
867 684
Less: Amount included in gross amounts due & : ETAJEU(JER) B H)
from/(to) customers for contract work B TIEFRIBRE S5 (31) (35)
836 649
2018 2017
—2-N\% —E—t%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiT FiET
Operating lease rental in respect of BRAMSE RS ENKEEHERS
machinery and equipment 396 312
Add/(less): Amount included in gross amounts 1,7 (&) : 5FAREY (FERD) B8
due from/(to) customers for EHIRFBERE, S5
contract work 39 (161)
435 151
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 7 1,000 32
Listing expenses WX 13,581 5,099
Operating lease rental in respect of BENATEEMNKEHEERS
- Premises — 632 180
— Car parks —{=E15 64 -
Provision for impairment of trade B B RBGRIE R E R (475 17b)
receivables (Note 17(b)) 2,513 2,665
Staff costs, including directors’ BIRA(RIEESWE) (Mt 7)
emoluments (Note 7) 18,851 13,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Salaries and allowances
Retirement scheme contributions
— defined contribution plan

Add/(less): Amount included in gross hnCR) -
amounts due from/(to)

customers for contract work

The Group operates defined contribution schemes in
Hong Kong which comply with the requirements under the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance.
All assets under the schemes are held separately from
the Group under independently administered funds.
Contributions to the MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes
Ordinance.

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of each director and chief

executive for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 is set out below:

Year ended 31 March 2018 HEZ-E-N\E=R
=t-HLEE

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Eric Tse (Note (j) SRR (H12E0)

Mr. CK Tse (Note (j) SRS (H15t0)

Ms. Tse Ming Hei (‘Ms. Tse’) (Note (i) #iBEL+ ([#i&t])
(Hz )

Independent non-executive directors B HHTTEE

Mr.Tang Chi Wai (Note (i) HEREE (M)
Ms. Chung Lai Ling (Note (i) EEB R ()
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji (Note (i) E123¢ 54 (A2 )

o KoRRh

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE=Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

BEEEFFX (BEEEHS)
2018 2017
—E-NE —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
17,202 16,995
RRET B — E Rt sRET 2

610 563
17,812 17,558

SEAREY (R BEH

AHITIEFERE &5
1,039 (3,752)
18,851 13,806

AEERERGIEATES ([BEE ) A BIEPIHRE - £
BERAERNRKGE - ZEAS THMBEEERBIES
EREANEEZEEDRFA - BRESF S HIRZRRE
R EIRDIFRTT

EERaRER
(@) EBRFETHRASHNHH

BE_Z—N\GER-_ZT—tF=A=+—HILEFE "
BEERTETHAENFHOT

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fee in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2RR
e BENRE A BRI @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR THET THET TET TET
- 840 - - 840
- 840 - - 840
- 4380 60 18 558
100 - - - 100
100 - - - 100
100 - - - 100
300 2,160 60 18 2,538

HERIBREEZEREBRAR —T—\FEERS

79



80

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZT—+t4=H
—t—HILEE

Directors EZ

Mr. Eric Tse (Note (j) SRS E (Frat )

Mr. CK Tse (Note (j) HIRE S (H75E ()

Ms. Tse (Note (j) ST ()

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil). Neither
the chief executive nor any of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Notes:

[0} Mr. Eric Tse, Mr. CK Tse and Ms. Tse were appointed
as directors of the Company on 12 April 2017 and
redesignated as executive directors of the Company on
14 September 2017. Ms. Tse is also the chief executive
officer of the Company. They were also directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company and/or employees of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017
and the Group paid emoluments to them in their capacity
as the directors of these subsidiaries and/or employees of
the Group before their appointment as executive directors
of the Company.

(ii) Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji, Ms. Chung Lai Ling and
Mr. Tang Chi Wai were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 11 September
2017. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
aforesaid independent non-executive directors have
not yet been appointed and received no directors’
remuneration in their capacity as directors.
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A IS ERRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

8. EEMZREZR(E)
(@) EERFETHRABNEH(E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e RUR
ik BN MIETEAL  RIRGHEIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL FiET AT THET
- 600 - - 600
- 600 - 8 608
- 223 54 12 289
1,423 54 20 1,497

REBE-_Z-N\FZA=Z+—HLFE AEEILEAE
2SRRI BN & VR EL AN A SR DA S [ B 1) 2R R o B
HE(CE % 8) -RBE-_ZT-\F=A=+—H
LEE BEIETRABRENEEC RBXRABNE
EME (=T —tF  8) -

Wiz -

)
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BIRFSEE -~ FIRESELERH L LR —FE—+FA+—HEE
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BITEE - HILLINRBALAIAITTHARE - REZE—F—/\F L
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B AEEL B ERZENE R A EFR KA FEENES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two of them are directors for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: one), whose emoluments are
disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of the
remaining three individuals for the year ended 31
March 2018 are as follows (2017: four):

Salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses
Retirement scheme contributions

The emoluments of each of the above non-directors,
highest paid individuals were below HK$1,000,000.
During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid individuals as (i) an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or (i) compensation for loss of
office as a director or management of any members
of the Group.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on finance leases
Interest on bank overdrafts

MEMER)
RITIE A

8
(N
=

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE=Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

8. EEF@EKER(H)

(b)

e MoRRh
BB FEAT
BIRETEIfER

AEBREHFMAL
REZE-Z-NF=ZA=+—RALFE DELZ&SF
MALES  DREMEESFMALRERE(ZE
—tF: —FB) FEHERLEXERE - RBE-T
—NFZA=FT—HILFE  FHEBRT=2RK=5H
ATHBSN T (ZE—+F : @F)

2018 2017
—s-N\% e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
1,491 1,654

460 1,453

54 66

2,005 3,173

LB ESFHESHMA THBEIIER 1,000,000 % 7T ©
REBEE-ZT—N\ER-_ZT—+F-A=+—HLEFEE " K
EBEMERIA ERSEHFWMA TS ES () INARER K
IMARE B & ZE () EAANEBEKE ARIMESK
BEEBRBREE -

BE R A

2018 2017

e % %
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT

- 46

215 131

215 177

HERIBREEZEREBRAR —T—\FEERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

Forthe yearended 31 March 2018 #HZ—ZF

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in or

NEZR=+—HLLFE

10. FifEHiREX

FHEEENEH -

derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Hong Kong profits tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior year

Current income tax
Deferred income tax (Note 25)

Income tax expense

The taxation on the Group’s profit

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong

Kong profits tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax

Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effects of:
— Income not subject to tax

— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax

asset was recognised
Adjustment in respect of prior year
Tax concession

Income tax expense

FAEBREELIRABTENMERBUEN IR E16.5%

2018 2017
—E-NEF —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FET

HEFIEHR
F AR E BIFIR 4,887 3,756
M E—FEELARE (42) -
EHIFTSH 4,845 3,756
IRIEFT1SHL (B15E25) 581 (291)
FSfiAx 5,426 3,465

before income tax differs
ERIERE RS HRERAT

AR ER B B AT S A5 A I RO B0 TR B8 PR BB M IS R A R P AR

2018 2017

—EBE-N\FE —E 45

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

R TS B A ) 18,667 16,021

#£16.5% Z B RFE 3,080 2,643

A

— AR AUA (38) =

— AR A 2,242 842
YRR SHIEE ED

FRIEE 18 214 _

RE—FEELFAR (42) =

RISER (30) (20)

SR 5,426 3,465
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12,

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

1. SRER

SRERRRIEARD TEE AR A FRE BT %
R AT B -

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Profit attributable to owners of the Company NARER AEIE &R
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 13,241 12,556
Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 21T & @A INAE 152
(thousands of shares) (Note (a)) (FR) (Bt (a) 525,616 450,000
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BRERZF () 0.03 0.03

(@) In determining the number of shares in issue, the
total of 450,000,000 shares issued, 1 share issued
on the incorporation of the Company, 9,999 shares
issued on the Reorganisation of the Group and
449,990,000 shares issued on capitalisation issue
were deemed to have been issued since 1 April
2016.

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 March 2018.
DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018,

(a) HEETDEITROEBER - 4 450,000,000 %2 2
TR B ~ 1 IR AR B sE A S B 21T R AR 1D
9,990 % PR 7K £= 8] 5 48 M 31T I B 19 K 449, 990,000
BARBENMEBITERITHRNEEBE S —~F
0 A — B A SRIEZETT -

HRBE T \F=A=T—HILFEIECETEE
BHLER  MEREERNEGRELRNESE -
12. RE

BE_Z—)/\FZA=+—HIFE HERARRER
BRERXNRZRERES - BREARETEZZTIR

nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the FRARE(ZE—CF : &) -
reporting period (2017: Nil).
SUBSIDIARIES 13. MIEARE
The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 31 March NTARZZE-—N\FR=ZT—tF=A=+—HZHWEA
2018 and 2017: AR
Proportion
Legal form, date and place Issued and fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of incorporation/operations up share capital held by the Company  Principal activities
EERR MR REH AARBENHESR
WEARERE AHRBE BERTRBERTRAE HERl  EEXK
Noble Wisdom Holdings Limited Limited liability company US$4.00 100% (direct)  Investment holding
(‘Noble Wisdom’) incorporated on 4.00%7T 100% (Bf%) BEER
REERERAR(EE]) 5 January 2017, the BV
RZZE—tF—-ARBM
RMBERRA  EBRERHS
Eric Tse Cement Works Company Limited liability company HK$10,000,000.00 100% (indirect)  Provision of wet
Limited (“Eric Tse Cement Works”)  incorporated on 8 October 10,000,000.00 77T 100% (fi#) trades works services

RREKTRRARAF
(MERREAIRE])

1997, Hong Kong
R=ASEF+ANBE
MAIMBR AR - EE

B TIRIRE

MERIREEZRARLF

“E-N\FEERE
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
As at 1 April 2016
Additions

As at 31 March 2017

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2016
Charge for the year

As at 31 March 2017

Net book value
As at 31 March 2017

Cost
As at 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposal

As at 31 March 2018

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposal

As at 31 March 2018

Net book value
As at 31 March 2018

L7 — o
BHECT

=

NEZR=+—HLLFE

Ritie
N =B —NFIA—H
TR

RZE—+F=A=+—H

FREDHE

RZZE—+F=RA=+—H

(DN
R-ZFE—tFHA—H
NE

HE

R=ZB-NF=ZA=+—8H

RitiE

N =B LA —H
T

e

R-—ZE-N\FE=A=+—H

AR E FHE

R=ZB-NF=ZA=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

14. BERRHE
Machinery
Office Motor and
equipment vehicles equipment Total
WRRE RE BBRRE #Et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
6 1,319 1,892 3,217
199 - 1,146 1,345
205 1,319 3,038 4,562
= 960 915 1,875
14 215 455 684
14 1,175 1,370 2,559
191 144 1,668 2,008
205 1,319 3,038 4,562
32 - 2,211 2,243
- - (168) (168)
237 1,319 5,081 6,637
14 1,175 1,370 2,559
45 113 709 867
- - (168) (168)
59 1,288 1,911 3,258
178 31 3,170 3,379




15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT RRMEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments

Bank balances
Restricted cash

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities

Amounts due to directors
Bank overdrafts

GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS

FOR CONTRACT WORK

Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses
Less: Progress billings received and receivables

Gross amounts due to customers
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivables
Less: Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZEZ=Z

15. €RMIASE

NF=ZRA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
SREE
B REK
E%&ﬁ@%%m
TEIEEMAR 63,245 47,975
IRITHE SR 62,915 29,389
ZRERE 820 80
126,980 77,444
2018 2017
—B-N\EF —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
K=l =Ri
&%ﬁﬁﬁ# SRR A &
S REMEMNKIE - TEIE
#@Eﬂ%% 29,096 29,148
EEEFHIE - 20,432
BITEX - 6,246
29,096 55,826
16. EW ENEFHNEHNIRERBHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
EBUEFNANIRERELE
FE A6 IR AN E FERR s A
BEEREBE 563,633 627,021
B B ENGE S EREE (544,559) (598,413)
19,074 28,608
ENEFNAHNIREREHLE
B K FE Uk HE E R B 273,779 195,793
W FTEAS HRAINE #R
S AR B R AR (270,264) (188,060)
3,515 7,733

MERIREEZRARLF

—E-N\FEERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables — net

Retention receivables (Note (c))
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Notes:

(@)  Whilst the credit period granted to customers are @)

ranging from 17 to 35 days generally.

(b)  The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on (b)

invoice date is as follows:

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

Trade receivables of approximately HK$18,715,000
as at 31 March 2018 were not yet past due (2017:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. ESZRHEMEKRE

2018 2017
—g-N\f =i

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT F#T

B 5 REMGRE 20,129 18,944
A B S REMGIE R EEE (69) (2,665)
E 5 R R 5 20,060 16,279
FEUWRES (A5 () 35,246 28,905
HAbRURIE « e RFBRRIE 8,426 2,890
63,732 48,074

MEE

BT EFOEES— BN T 17 A28 -

REERBHRNE S RBGRIBNREDITNAT

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E 45
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
0Z30H 17,413 10,291
31HAZE60H 2,631 4,375
61 EE90H 16 1,510
90 B A F - 103
20,060 16,279

R-ZE-NE=ZA=+—8B r EFrEkzxmE

#918,715000 LM A @A BH( =T — £ F: 4

approximately HK$11,743,000), and approximately
HK$1,345,000 as at 31 March 2018 were past
due but not impaired (2017: approximately
HK$4,536,000). These relate to trade receivables
from a number of independent customers of whom
there is no recent history of default and no provision
has therefore been made. The ageing analysis of

11,743,0007L) - MR=ZE—N\&E=A=+—81"
#91,345,000 8 L EMBERBE(ZE—tF + 4
4,536,000 70) o Il ERIFE % 4 A B R 5
BB EFNESRIGKIEERE - A EET
- ZEBZRIGIENRESITET ¢

these trade receivables is as follows:

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FiET

0&30H 1,329 2,924
31HE60H 16 1,510
61 HZE90H = =
90 BB+ - 102
1,345 4,536

86 Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

e SRR RE

NEZA=+—HILFE

s — &

BUE -

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 17. ESRHEMEKRRIE (&)

()  The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on (b) IREBZAHMNESHEUGIENERRITOT : (8)
invoice date is as follows: (continued)

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment REENE SEVGIERBERBEEHINT

of trade receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NEFE —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
Provision made for the year (Note 6) FRELRE (Hate) 2,513 2,665
Beginning of the year =) 2,665 -
Provision reversed for the year (Note 5) RERIEL R B EE (F7a25) (5,109) -
End of the year FXR 69 2,665

(©)  Retention receivables were not past due as at 31 © RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—0 BERRESLELRH
March 2018, and were settled in accordance with the WiZBEBEHNNEREE(ZE—EF - &) -
terms of respective contract (2017: Nil).

(d) As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group @ RZZE—N\EFRZZFE—F=A=+—8 ' x5EEZ
reviews trade and other receivables for evidence of 18751 2 BE g8 EL R R E B IR R 5 K B fth FE U IR
impairment on both an individual and collective basis. 1755 - BERENE - BEZRBGERERED
Based on the impairment assessment, provision for BRAEEREEESRVVBRE - NEEWERF
impairment of trade receivables are recognised which EEHERDERER -
are in financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security over these receivables.

(e)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other ) AEENEZRHEMEKFIEREABENSITHE
receivables are denominated in HKS.

() The other classes within trade and other receivables H BISREMERGENEMERNRSIIREEE - &
do not contain impaired assets. The Group does not SEWESAEEAFDERER -
hold any collateral as security.

BANK BALANCES 18. #RITHER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Cash at banks RTINS 57,915 29,389
Short-term bank deposit RERITIF R 5,000 -
62,915 29,389
Notes: Kiat -
(@)  The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in @ HRERRSEEWLABTINE -
HKS.

(o)  Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based (o) SRITHRSIBEE B IRITF A RIRZ B F = FRELA
on daily bank deposit rates. Boe

(¢)  Short-term deposit held at bank is not pledged (€ RIRITHAENEBRRITFRAREEREADRNEE ER

to secure any facilities of the Group. The effective
interest rate on the deposit is 0.8% as at 31 March
2018 and is mature in June 2018 (2017: nil).

BENER FIRZZE-N\F=ZRA=+—HZER
MER0B% AR —F—NFRAZP (T 15
) o

BERIBREEEREBRAR —T—\FEERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

19.

20.

RESTRICTED CASH 19. ZRHEHES
Restricted cash represent deposits held at an insurance FREIBLIENERARIBEENTEDS  (EAESNBITAE
company for faithful of performance in according to the EREFRAEIZNEH -
contract between the Group and the customer.
SHARE CAPITAL 20. MB®AK
As at 31 March 2017, the share capital represents the RIZE—+F=ZA=1+—H BREAEARQEREERE
aggregate of paid up share capital of the companies BRI ZAKEE T AR ZEHRRAEEE -
comprising the Group held by the controlling shareholders
of the Company prior to the Reorganisation.
Details of the Company’s authorised and issued ordinary ARRRVEEREETERREZFFNOT :
share capital are as follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Share Capital
ZEREE [N
Notes HK$’000
Htat FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.01 BTz BB
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZE—RFNA—BRK
—T—tF=A=1+—H - =
Upon incorporation of the Company RZE—tFMA+=H
on 12 April 2017 AN R AR S B (@) 10,000,000 100
Increase in number of authorised shares SEEMRADELE 1 h0 (b) 1,490,000,000 14,900
As at 31 March 2018 R=-EB—-N\E=HA=+-—H 1,500,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
As at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZF—R"FOA—HK
—ET—+tF=A=1+—H = -
Upon incorporation of the Company RZE—+FWMA+=-H
on 12 April 2017 ZN/NS Esa il VA @ 1 -
Shares issued upon the Reorganisation SR B BITRRA () 9,999 S
Shares issued pursuant to the RIBEERNELBEITEEITRG
capitalisation issue (d) 449,990,000 4,500
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer — 1RIEZ(H 2E 2 24 TA% 5 (e) 150,000,000 1,500
As at 31 March 2018 R-E—-N\E=H=+—H 600,000,000 6,000

Notes:

(@) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands on 12 April 2017 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and one nil-paid subscriber
share was issued and allotted to the subscriber which was
subsequently transferred to Land Noble on the same date.

(b) Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the sole shareholder of
the Company on 14 September 2017, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$100,000 to
HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares by
the creation of an additional 1,490,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

() Pursuant to the Reorganisation and as consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of the entire issued share capital of
Noble Wisdom from Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse on 6 September
2017, the Company issued and allotted 9,999 ordinary shares to
Land Noble, all credited as fully paid respectively.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Bat

(@ RZZF—tFOA+=R  ARFARHAERETMRILARER L
BRDRF] - AERZA 100,000 7T + 4 410,000,000 A& AR E
EO0.01 BT TR - AR - —BRBBGRRIEAR D R %

RETTAAARBEA  EEREAREETSM -

(o) RBEE—RFER_ZE—tFNA+NBERBORER - AR A
#55%1,490,000,000 iR B AR EI{E 0.01 BT &y @AR - #EERA
F1100,0007# 73 = 15,000,000/ 7T * % 4 1,500,000,000 % & 38
% - BRARGEME HHEERNERITROZERSHAL -

© R-F—tFNAKE  BRESE - XX B RHHRREE R
LETWBERE2HERTRA - (FARE - ARARBMHLETT
K FeE% 9,900 BEEAR - HARRIMERR -
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21.

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 14 September 2017 and conditional upon
the share premium account of the Company being credited
as a result of the share offer, the Company authorised to allot
and issued a total of 449,990,000 ordinary shares credited as
fully paid at par to the holder of the Company’s shares on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business
on 14 September 2017 by way of capitalisation of the sum of
approximately HK$4,500,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company.

(e) On 29 September 2017, upon its listing on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 150,000,000 new ordinary
shares at an offer price of HK$0.47 each and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$70,500,000.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at
a premium, less expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of the shares.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of its
subsidiaries arising from the Reorganisation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 14
September 2017. The Scheme is to attract and retain the
best personnel, to provide additional incentive to the eligible
participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of
the Scheme, grant options to any employees (full-time or
part-time), directors, consultants, advisors, substantial
shareholder, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of
the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
eligibility of any participants to the grant of any options
shall be determined by the directors of the Company (or as
the case maybe, the independent non-executive directors
of the Company) from time to time on the basis of the
directors’ opinion as to their contribution or potential to the
development and growth of the Group.

20.

21.

22.

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

B ()
Hiit : (%

(d) BREM—BRERA T —tFNLATHRBBNARR - ARAE
BENMEERD RERZERES 44,500,000 T2 H -
AR =B FNA 0 HEERREERFEIBREM AR
RIRAD < 58 A BT RECE A 3£ 449,990,000 IR AR SR
bl

©) RZZB—tFNAZTNBRERRZAGEM Wk - ARFIE
REEEERY 0.47 B ITETT 150,000,000 A& % A% & H15
PR3 7XIB42%8 /& 70,500,000 B 7T ©

&

MR (B
B EEDARBBRDIAGERTRASES - MERET
BiNEME - ERNEEZER -

Hith &
HAib BN EAR RREUR R B M B QR RA MR AR
AETRD 2 EEEZERAREZ ZH °

BRERE

ARRRFE—ER T —EFNA TR BBHRERR
B RCERT & ([ a8 ) - BT 8| 5 £l R B &
BENAR @ RIFZHEAEER2EEIRIFEINERE -

RIBZETE - ARBESF BB MR EZ AR
ARAEEEFARE (ZREGRE)  EF  #FH#HA B
M- EEACR - SR AR el K2 'R
BERH IR HRER R L BRE  REARR KD
M2 BEERREARREZER - SRARFEES(RIBFR
i€ RAARBBULIFPTES) NHEE - ERES
HREMAEBEBRSIERMEERIEEERMZER

BERIBREEEREBRAR —T—\FEERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#Z-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

22.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other
share options schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. The maximum number of shares
issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as from the adoption date must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on
which the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in
the Stock Exchange. The 10% limit may be refreshed at
anytime by approval of the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting provided that the total number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) under
the Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company in any 12-month period up to date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Where any further grant of options to
a participant under the Scheme would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted to such participant (including lapsed or
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-
month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number
of shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding any independent non-executive director who
is the grantee). Where any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective close
associates would result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to such
person in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the general meeting of the
Company, with voting to be taken by way of poll.

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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BRERE (E)

BT RBEZA I RARBDEFMEEREA I EREE
W ARTTE R 2 BRI AR T AT BE BT AR D AR 2R - TS HRIB
B ETTRUD B 30% o MARIE AT B3 AR AHE H At
BRI HBEREERSEBR0% LR - AITNERHE
Bt - BERM AR EITERRZ A 8 R AR BEM EA
PBREST BN TR AR A TRITNRNER
LR AATEBEREN LR REERBIMEES
2EHEETRME10% © LR 10% A BERF &R R R BRER
PRARE LHER B - EETERIEZA B R AR RE
o] oAt B8 AR A 5+ B S T 4% B 2 BRRE AR R T P BR B ATV A
RER MDA TEEBIEREHN LIREAAQFDH
TTRIHI 10%

BERDAYILEM12@ARER - BITEREZ 8K
AR RUEREMRE B 8 T2 20% 2 BEE (215
BATE R ARITERBRE) MO BTRETRITZRMNDE
B PBBEARBBMEEZ1% © MR 32 08EE
—IREBRESEREEZE-—IREBHA(BRELZR)
12 @ABEA - BITEERTEERTZE28E M
BBERE(BRERMKRCITR  CEERHRITERR
B)MEBTRETET RN  ARBEREBTROE
1% AL - AIERE - PREBARBRRRERAE LS
TTHAE - Mz B2 EEREBBEANERRRR -

MAABESE  T2TRABREIERRARESE 21T
HE S AR A EFEAE - HAGARRBILENTESR
(TBEE RERAZEMBILIFRTESR) HE  MRA
AAEZBRRBBIIFATEZTREES B 2 EAIR T
ZARLEABERE SREBREREAR(BEZA) L
ER121E A BM A - BITEAREZA & XA R BMER EA
BREFZCALAALTREISE FREZPAEBEE (2
EEATR  ERERRARTTERRE) mE BT R TET
2B - SHBHARREHTRN Z01% - B4EE
HBBsAEAEI - BIAKRKRARBERNARFBERAE LA
BEFRRTTAME
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 21 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 21 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined
by the board of directors of the Company and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date; and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 14 September 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed since the adoption of the Scheme and there were no
share option outstanding as at 31 March 2018.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

Notes:

(@) Payment terms granted by suppliers of materials
and subcontractors are ranging from 0 to 30 days
generally.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H
61 — 90 days 61 HZE90H
Over 90 days 90 B A

B SRR
et B A R B AL IR

22.

23.

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

BRERE (E)

REBREZZNARBZORSEA 21 ARNUERE
e ARARRES AT 2 M - BERRIEZATEIZ
ERAT R IBAE - ENSBBRKXH R 105 ¥R
BRI LG PTRRIR o AR 2 BB - ARA
ARBEHA IR ZFHRA(TSEREEH AR 21
B)MARRZAT 1 BTEERE -

RBERALREFE2RETIRN2EE - REER
LERTINGER Z&EE © ()BRAEERERMABAER
AN EE BB WTE : ()BT A REXMBAD
AR ERZO A MR AEEER 2 FHEHE - K (i)
EHRAY 2 ARRRMEE

ZETE B —T—tFNA TOREF T FHRRAEREE
R W ZATBIPTE AR AT LGS PRARIR -

BERMZAEIAR - BIEERE - BT EFHEHER
MEERHE - MR- N\F=A=+—ARERRITE
PBAHE -

BESREMENRE
2018 2017
—B-NF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
26,018 27,884
3,078 1,264
29,096 29,148

Hat
@ BETREMHERERSEEHNFRIER RN F0E30
(=)

IR H B E S RN FROBRR DT T

2018 2017
—E-N\E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT T
25,692 22,423
107 1,715

219 1,150

- 2,596

26,018 27,884

BERIBREEEREBRAR —T—\FEERS

91



92

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 23. EZRHEMESRE(E)
Notes: (continued) HisE . (&)
(b)  All trade and other payables are denominated in b) FEEZREMENFTIEAEITE -
HKS.
24. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 24, PENEEFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
Name of directors EEMSE HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Mr. Eric Tse HIRIR S & = 10,216
Mr. CK Tse iR A - 10,216
- 20,432
The balances are denominated in HK$. The amounts due to ZHABAETTINE - ENERFEEIFEHLE - REER
directors are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and o AEHBRANEREEE -
repayable on demand.
25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25. EEFRSH
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RBEREZETBRRARANEEROTERRBEE (A
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial B ERREBNT ¢
position and the movements during the reporting period are
as follows:
Provision for
impairment
of trade Tax
receivables depreciation Total
B 2 EWRIE
AR HEHE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
Deferred tax arising from: EEHREEER :
As at 1 April 2016 RZT—"FMNA—A = (112) (112
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (Note 10) B 18z5# %, (0% ) (AzF 10) 440 (149) 291
As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 )Eé: = —+F=A=+—HK
—tFmA—H 440 (261) 179
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) = }E ﬁJD 2 (BiEE10) (428) (153) (581)
As at 31 March 2018 R=B-NE=R=+—8H 12 (414) (402)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in
respect of the tax losses as the directors of the Company
consider that it is uncertain as to the extent that future
profits will be available against which tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$1,299,000 (2017: Nil), which are
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely and are subject to approval from the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

BANKING FACILITIES 26. HRITEE
As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unutilised bank RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 "EBHNRBDARITESE
overdraft facilities of approximately HK$20,000,000, which B 49520,000,000/87C © TWAKRRQARIZENERSEAT]
were secured by the unlimited corporate guarantee and R ERERFERIEE -
indemnity executed by the Company.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group has unutilised bank RZE—+F=ZA=+—0 AEENAPAFTESE
overdraft facilities of approximately HK$13,754,000 which BR/13,754,0008 7T + THLAIRIRSE A - BRE K E R
were secured by car parking spaces and properties 2= e AR B 15 1 MO SR EE AL 2 ) 2 DA T2 6 3 1R R 5 A6 R SRR
owned by Mr. Eric Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, B AER T EABRERRE - #HRRAE  BHIREZEE
and personal guarantee granted by Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. REENRBFENEERBEL LY R B HRRE
CK Tse. The secured car parking spaces and properties A REIREZ A AR B EAABRR ZZ —H 5 AR -
owned by Mr. Eric Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, and
personal guarantees granted by Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK
Tse were released in September 2017.
As at 31 March 2018, the bank overdrafts are carrying RZZE—NF=ZA=+—0 RIOTBEIIRABRITHORE
interest at a rate of 0.5% over the prime rate of the relevant EREBSMN05% 2 FMEAB(ZE—+F  REENES
bank per annum (2017: 0.5% over the prime rate). 10.5%) °
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 27. ZEBREREXRMT
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (@) PBRFABHAINRNEKLEMEERSWHE
cash generated from operations
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBxT
Profit before income tax MBS A& A 18,667 16,021
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation of plant and equipment MR N RETE 836 649
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B 2R IE R E R 2,513 2,665
Interest expense FEFAXZ 215 177
Interest income FEWA (228) -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment SRS & 2R U (1) .
Provision reversed for impairment of B 08 5 e SGRIE R E B
trade receivables (5,109) -
Operating profit before changes in BB BB AT L m
working capital 16,893 19,5612
Decrease/(Increase) in gross amounts due FEREFNAEHTITRENRIEA
from customers for contract work wER L, (35n) 9,511 (17,496)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H e GRIRIE AN (13,060) (15,082)
Increase in restricted cash PR HIZR S 10 (740) (80)
(Decrease)/Increase in gross amounts FEAREEHE 4 TIEFIE
due to customers for contract work ®ECRL),/1Em (4,164) 256
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables B 5 NEMERFIAR
CRA) (52) 9,176
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEREL, (SR MRS 8,388 (3,664)

(b) Non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 March 2018, none of the
additions to plant and equipment were financed by
finance lease arrangements (2017: approximately
HK$157,000).

b) FREXH
HE-_Z-—N\F=ZA=1+—HLFE  BHETHK
EREHBABEEE THREHAEZHERE(ZS—+
£ 1 #157,000787T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &#ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 27. HZEBESRERMT (E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(¢) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (c) REMEIBHNAEEED
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAVNAEERETHABENESD - KEMETE
liabilities from financing activities. Liabilities arising HEaEAERBERAEBGAREeRER PEARE
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash EESESREZREREXNAKBRERENE
flows were, or future cash flow will be classified in the & o
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.
As at
As at 31 March
1 April 2017 Cash flows 2018
R-F—tF R=ZB-—N\F
mA—H RERE =HA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFHET FExT
Amounts due to directors FEREERIE 20,432 (20,432) -
COMMITMENTS 28. &iE
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee REAERE - FE@EAEAA
As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease RIEBH  RETURELCEHERERNNRERE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were FRERENT -
payable as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within one year —FR 379 681
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EEFERF(BREEEMT) = 379
379 1,060
The Group is the lessee in respect of premises under AEERFHAKLEHEE TMENABA - ZHE—KY)
operating leases. The leases typically run for initial periods BLREAMT - WHEEERNEEE  BNEKRIEEN
of approximately 2 years, with an option to renew the leases s
when all terms are renegotiated.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 29. BEFRS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or joint control. Related parties may be
individuals or other entities.

(@) Save as disclosed in Notes 24 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group did not
have any significant related party transaction with
related parties during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

(b)  The emoluments of the directors and senior
executives (representing the key management
personnel) during the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017 are disclosed in Note 8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE-Z—N\F=A=+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. AATHBIRRERREE
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FExT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A RAIIRE 41,500
Current assets REIEE
Prepayment TEfT /IR 237
Amount due from a subsidiary e — IR B A B3I 15,408
Bank balances RITHERR 29,689
45,334
Total assets wmEE 86,834
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EAXREE
Share capital A& AR 6,000
Reserve (Note (a)) s (K15 @) 80,834
Total equity RSB 86,834
Total equity and liabilities BERKAE 86,834
Net current assets REEEFE 45,334
Total assets less current liabilities wEERREBEE 86,834
Note (a) Reserve of the Company Wit (a) & R
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B4 ME Hitft % RitEE #gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT FAT
Balance as at 12 April 2017 RZZE—+FMWA+=H
(date of incorporation) (FEMASL B HR) 2 # 84 = = = =
Profit and total comprehensive income  EAAEF & 2 EUE L 5B
for the period - - (14,653) (14,653)
Reorganisation =t - 41,500 - 41,500
Shares issued pursuant to the RIEENEEITERITHRG
capitalisation issue (4,500) - - (4,500)
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer 1R B () 34 E 2 21 TR D 69,000 - - 69,000
Shares issuance costs BRHEITER (10,513) = = (10,513)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 R-ZEB-NFE=A=+—HAz&# 53,087 41,500 (14,653) 80,834
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Financial Summary

B E

For the year ended 31 March

BEZA=t—HLFE

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —T—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT FAT

Revenue Wz 408,944 285,430 267,408

Gross profit EF 42,399 29,818 20,015

Profit before income tax BRETIS LA EF 18,667 16,021 14,732
Profit and total comprehensive income NARER AFEM
for the year attributable to owners of FRHEMNRER

the Company Iyt 13,241 12,556 12,321

Total assets BB E 149,920 108,333 87,623

Total liabilities FEN=E 35,089 66,730 68,576

Total equity and liabilities wrE=REE 149,920 108,333 87,623
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